
TOWN OF HAMDEN

ENERGY USE & CLIMATE CHANGE COMMISSION MEETING
JULY 15, 2013

7:00 PM

MAIN FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM
HAMDEN GOVERNMENT CENTER

HAMDEN

Commissioners in attendance:  Frank Gasparro, Chairman
Frederick Schramm, Vice Chairman
David Bruhn
David Cooper
Matt Corcoran
Martin Mador
Amy Sowitcky

Others in attendance: Chris Marchand
Peggy Craft, Commission Clerk

 
CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Gasparro called the meeting to order at 7:06 PM.

APPROVAL OF THE JULY 15, 2013

Commissioner Mador motioned to approve the Minutes of the July 5, 2013 meeting as presented.  
Commissioner Bruhn seconded the motion that passed unanimously.

MICROGRID PROJECT

Commissioner Schramm said the application was submitted on June 18th.  He further reported that it 
was received by DEEP and processed.  He said there would be a four-week evaluation period, and the 
Corporation should hear from them the following week.  He also said that everyone he has spoken to in 
Hartford liked the application.  He will follow-up with UI regarding the interconnection.  He said he 
thought they had gathered the information, but it was not sent.  Mr. Schramm delivered a request for 
the insurance form to the Orange UI office.  He has requested this file three times but has not received 
it.

Mr. Schramm said he has received information from the Geo Exchange Engineer’s site visit to Hamden 
High School.  He said they are very enthusiastic about having geo exchange incorporated into the 
microgrid.  They said it could save up to 40% on the High School electricity bill.  He said there is no 
reason not to proceed full speed ahead.  He said he is getting some push from the Board of Education.  
He said they feel the Town should take care of all of it.  Mr. Marchand pointed out that if the BOE says 
OK, it still has to go to Council.  Mr. Schramm asked who is the landlord, the BOE or the Town.  Mr. 
Marchand said the Town is the landlord. 

Mr. Cooper discussed the new regulations on microgrids and virtual net metering regarding adding 
accounts.  There was a lengthy discussion regarding this topic.  



ENERGY USE & CLIMATE CHANGE COMMISSION MEETING
JULY 15, 2013
PAGE 2

There was a discussion regarding the Memo of Understand language.  Mr. Schramm said everyone is 
on the same page and want this to happen.  Mr. Mador asked who would sign the Memo.  Mr. Schramm 
said he would like the Mayor, the head of the BOE and Shoprite to sign it.  Mr. Marchand said the 
Town would have to propose a bid waiver to Sleeping Giant Energy.  He added the Town Attorney said 
members of SCE who are part of the Commission creates a conflict of interest or insider trading.  Mr. 
Corcoran said SGE is the same as the Hamden Redevelopment Corporation.  The Town Attorney asked 
why another interest could not have the right to bid on it.  Mr. Schramm said since SGE is the group 
that submitted the application they are the only ones who can be involved with it this year.  He added 
that the Town Attorney is on board with the bid waiver.  Mr. Mador asked  if the Mayor is supporting 
this.  Mr. Marchand said he hasn't heard yet.  There was a lengthy discussion regarding this topic.  Mr. 
Schramm said he has spoken with Brendan Sharkey regarding this and he has no problem with the 
Town Attorney’s opinion.  He said we would have to go thru the bid waiver process and then ask Mr. 
Sharkey to assist at the State Legislative level.  

Mr. Mador asked if the Town has gone to CCM.  Mr. Marchand said they have not.  Mr. Mador said it 
might be a good idea since they have an energy staff.

OLD BUSINESS

There was a discussion regarding the $15,000 available from CEFIA for the Commission to spend.  Mr. 
Gasparro has sent an e-mail to Bob Wall regarding this.  He has not heard back.  Mr. Mador asked 
about the rules and regulations regarding this program.  Mr. Marchand said it is a new program and he 
is not sure of the regulations.  He added that if we reviewed the CEFIA website there may be some 
information.

Ms. Sowitcky suggested using the funds for solar lights at Town Center Park.  She also asked how we 
could go forward with this.  Mr. Marchand said we have to see what CEFIA says, and if they agree then 
we can ask for $15,000 for lighting at Town Center Park.

Mr. Gasparro read an e-mail from Bob Wall regarding his answer to his e-mail.  Mr. Wall’s message 
indicated that among other things, LED lighting is an approved expense.  

There was a discussion regarding Ms. Sowitcky’s suggestion.  Mr. Gasparro will contact Mr. Wall 
again regarding this suggestion.  Mr. Schramm asked how often would we be eligible for the $15,000.  
Mr. Marchand said every time we get 100 points for signups etc.

Mr. Schramm asked how much light would be needed in the park.  Mr. Marchand said that this could 
be done in phases, first the playground, etc.  Mr. Schramm suggested having a collector that would 
store the energy for use during a possible outage.  Mr. Bruhn asked how often the lighting at Town 
Center Park would be used.  Mr. Marchand suggested that we think about getting the feelings of the 
Town Center Park Commission regarding this suggestion.  There was further discussion regarding this 
subject.

Mr. Cooper discussed green roofs.  Mr. Marchand said the Hamden Police Department building has one 
that is leaking.  They are having it removed.  

CPACE will be going to Council in August.    



ENERGY USE & CLIMATE CHANGE COMMISSION MEETING
JULY 15, 2013
PAGE 3

Mr. Bruhn discussed the Press Conference for Energize Hamden. Mr. Mador said it was a great 
presentation, but due to several time changes the press was not there. 

NEW BUSINESS

There was a discussion regarding an article that appeared in the New Haven Register regarding the 
budget problems.  Mr. Schramm asked if it is possible to assemble something to show how much the 
Town is saving through the work this Commission is doing, with the emphasis on energy.  Mr. 
Marchand will look into this  

Mr. Cooper discussed graduate students doing energy audits at the University of New Haven.  They 
will be doing audits in West Haven, Fairfield and Shelton, as well as North Haven.  He suggested they 
do an audit in Hamden.  

Ms. Sowitcky motioned to cancel the August meeting.  Mr. Bruhn seconded the motion that 
passed unanimously.
 
ADJOURNMENT

There was no further business to come before the Commission and Chairman called for a motion to 
adjourn.  Commissioner Sowitcky motioned to adjourn.  Commissioner Cooper seconded the 
motion that passed unanimously.   Chairman Gasparro adjourned the meeting at 8:12 PM.

Submitted by: _________________________
                       Peggy Craft, Commission Clerk    

 


	OLD BUSINESS
	NEW BUSINESS

